
 
NOTICE 

 
OF 

 
MEETING 

 

WINDSOR AND ASCOT DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
will meet on 

 
WEDNESDAY, 4TH AUGUST, 2021 

 
At 7.00 pm 

 
In the 

 
GREY ROOM - YORK HOUSE,  STREAMED ON RBWM YOUTUBE  

 
 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR AND ASCOT DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 
COUNCILLORS CHRISTINE BATESON, JOHN BOWDEN (VICE-CHAIRMAN), 
DAVID CANNON (CHAIRMAN), WISDOM DA COSTA, JON DAVEY, NEIL KNOWLES, 
JULIAN SHARPE, SHAMSUL SHELIM AND AMY TISI  

 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 
 
COUNCILLORS CAROLE DA COSTA, KAREN DAVIES, DAVID HILTON, 
LYNNE JONES, SAYONARA LUXTON, GARY MUIR, HELEN PRICE, 
SAMANTHA RAYNER AND JOHN STORY 

 
 

Karen Shepherd – Head of Governance - Issued: July 27th 2021 
 
Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Andy Carswell andy.carswell@rbwm.gov.uk 

 
 

Recording of Meetings – In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the Part I (public) section of the virtual 

meeting will be streamed live and recorded via Zoom. By participating in the meeting by audio and/or video, you are 
giving consent to being recorded and acknowledge that the recording will be in the public domain. If you have any 

questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead/videos
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

  

- 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of interest. 

  

3 - 4 
 

3.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To note the minutes of the meeting of the Royal Borough Development 
Management Panel held on July 21 2021. 

  

5 - 8 
 

4.   20/02720/FULL - RESERVOIR ASCOT RACECOURSE WINKFIELD 
ROAD ASCOT TO PUMPING STATION WEST OF THE GREAT 
POND WATERSPLASH LANE - ASCOT 
 
PROPOSAL: Installation of replacement underground water pipeline, 
replacement plant to pump house and associated works connecting 
from Ascot Racecourse Reservoir; across Winkfield Road (A330); Royal 
Ascot Golf Club; Lower Farm; and to the Great Pond. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: PERMIT 
 
APPLICANT:  
 
MEMBER CALL-IN: N/A 
 
EXPIRY DATE: 28 August 2021 

  

9 - 18 
 

5.   21/01587/FULL - 43 KENTONS LANE - WINDSOR - SL4 4JH 
 
PROPOSAL: Single storey outbuilding (retrospective). 
 
RECOMMENDATION: PERMIT 
 
APPLICANT: Andrea Reis 
 
MEMBER CALL-IN: N/A 
 
EXPIRY DATE: 2 August 2021 

  

19 - 28 
 

6.   PLANNING APPEALS RECEIVED AND PLANNING DECISION 
REPORT 
 
To note the contents of the report. 

  

29 - 32 
 

 
 



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 
1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been 
relied 
on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation. 
The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions, 
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local 
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters 
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background 
Paper, 
although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to 
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded 
as 
“Comments Awaited”. 
The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning 
Acts 
and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire 
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning 
Guidance, 
as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common 
to 
the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents 
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”. 
 
STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000, 
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to 
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8 
(respect 
for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property) 
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is 
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the 
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing 
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s 
decision making will continue to take into account this balance. 
The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual 
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances 
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues. 

3

Agenda Item 2



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS 
 
 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 
 
DPIs include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any 
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed 
which has not been fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, 
and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would 
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public 
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to 
impartially consider only relevant issues.   
 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or  
Prejudicial Interest.  If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests 
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the 
item but  must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ 
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body 
determining the issue.  You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your 
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, 
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.  
 
If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services 
Officer before participating in the meeting. 
 
If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify 
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  
 
 
 

4



ROYAL BOROUGH DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 
 

WEDNESDAY, 21 JULY 2021 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Phil Haseler (Chairman), David Cannon (Vice-Chairman), 
Julian Sharpe, Geoff Hill, David Hilton, Neil Knowles, John Baldwin, Amy Tisi and 
Leo Walters 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Clive Baskerville, John Bowden (as non-Panel 
member), Lynne Jones and Donna Stimson 
 
Officers: Mary Severin, Andy Carswell, Jo Richards, Helena Stevenson and Sian 
Saadeh 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bowden and Reynolds. Councillors 
Sharpe and Baldwin were attending as substitutes. 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Knowles declared a personal interest in Item 4 as a member of Old Windsor Parish 
Council. 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 16 JUNE 2021  
 
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2021 be 
approved as a true and accurate record. 
 
The motion was proposed by Councillor Hilton and seconded by Councillor Walters. 

 
21/00477/FULL - MANOR LODGE PROBATION HOSTEL - 8 STRAIGHT ROAD - 
OLD WINDSOR - SL4 2RL  
 
A motion was put forward by Councillor Knowles to refuse the application, contrary to the 
Officer recommendation, as the public benefits of the application were not considered to 
outweigh the social impact on local residents’ quality of life in terms of crime and disorder and 
fear of crime, and safety and security of the area, contrary to paragraphs 92 and 130 of the 
NPPF. Additionally the tilted balance was not considered to be applicable as it was not 
considered that the application would take pressure off existing housing stock in the Royal 
Borough and did not conform to the requirements of the Development Plan. The motion was 
seconded by Councillor Hill. 
 
A named vote was taken. 
 

21/00477/FULL – MANOR LODGE PROBATION HOSTEL – 8 STRAIGHT ROAD – OLD 
WINDSOR – SL4 2RL (Motion) 
Councillor John Baldwin For 

Councillor David Cannon Against 

Councillor Phil Haseler Against 

Councillor Geoffrey Hill For 

Councillor David Hilton Against 

Councillor Neil Knowles For 

Councillor Julian Sharpe For 

Councillor Amy Tisi For 

5

Agenda Item 3



Councillor Leo Walters Against 

Carried 

 
RESOLVED: That the application be refused, contrary to the Officer recommendation. 

 
21/00686/FULL - LAND NORTH OF CAMPERDOWN HOUSE - ALMA ROAD - 
WINDSOR  
 
A motion was put forward by Councillor Cannon to approve the application, as per the Officer 
recommendation, subject to the conditions listed in Section 13 of the main report and subject 
to the amended Condition 3 as per the update report. The motion was seconded by Councillor 
Hill. 
 
A named vote was taken. 
 

21/00686/FULL – LAND NORTH OF CAMPERDOWN HOUSE – ALMA ROAD - WINDSOR 
(Motion) 
Councillor John Baldwin For 

Councillor David Cannon For 

Councillor Phil Haseler For 

Councillor Geoffrey Hill For 

Councillor David Hilton For 

Councillor Neil Knowles Against 

Councillor Julian Sharpe For 

Councillor Amy Tisi Against 

Councillor Leo Walters For 

Carried 

 
RESOLVED: That the application be approved, as per the Officer recommendation. 

 
21/00940/FULL - CHARNWOOD 12 AND LAND AT CHARNWOOD 12 - LIME WALK - 
MAIDENHEAD  
 
A motion was put forward by Councillor Walters to refuse the application, contrary to the 
Officer recommendation, as the proposals would be of a poor design which would be harmful 
to the character of the area and would cause less than substantial harm to the setting of 
adjacent heritage assets, contrary to policies DG1, H11, CA2 and LB2 of the Borough Wide 
Design Guide of the Borough Local Plan and paragraphs 198 and 202 of the NPPF. It was 
considered that the public benefit would not outweigh the less than substantial harm to the 
conservation area, and would increase suburban density in a conservation area. The motion 
was seconded by Councillor Hilton. 
 
A named vote was taken. 
 

21/00940/FULL – CHARNWOOD 12 AND LAND AT CHARNWOOD 12 – LIME WALK – 
MAIDENHEAD (Motion) 
Councillor John Baldwin For 

Councillor David Cannon Against 

Councillor Phil Haseler Against 

Councillor Geoffrey Hill For 

Councillor David Hilton For 

Councillor Neil Knowles Against 

Councillor Julian Sharpe For 

Councillor Amy Tisi For 

Councillor Leo Walters For 

Carried 

6



 
RESOLVED: That the application be refused, contrary to the Officer recommendation 

 
21/01419/FULL - STAR HOUSE - GRENFELL ROAD - MAIDENHEAD - SL6 1EH  
 
A motion was put forward by Councillor Baldwin to approve the application subject to the 
conditions listed in Section 11 of the main report, as per the Officer recommendation. The 
motion was seconded by Councillor Tisi. 
 
A named vote was taken. 
 

21/01419/FULL – STAR HOUSE – GRENFELL ROAD – MAIDENHEAD – SL6 1EH (Motion) 
Councillor John Baldwin For 

Councillor David Cannon For 

Councillor Phil Haseler For 

Councillor Geoffrey Hill For 

Councillor David Hilton For 

Councillor Neil Knowles For 

Councillor Julian Sharpe For 

Councillor Amy Tisi For 

Councillor Leo Walters For 

Carried 

 
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the application be approved, as per the Officer 
recommendation 

 
PLANNING APPEALS RECEIVED AND PLANNING DECISION REPORT  
 
Members noted the contents of the report. Councillor Knowles expressed disappointment at 
the outcome of the appeal relating to planning application 19/01513/FULL. 

 
 
The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 9.19 pm 
 

CHAIRMAN………………………………. 
 

DATE……………………………….......... 
 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL 

 
4 August 2021          Item:  1 

Application 
No.: 

20/02720/FULL 

Location: Reservoir Ascot Racecourse Winkfield Road Ascot To Pumping Station 
West of The Great Pond Watersplash Lane Ascot   

Proposal: Installation of replacement underground water pipeline, replacement 
plant to pump house and associated works connecting from Ascot 
Racecourse Reservoir; across Winkfield Road (A330); Royal Ascot Golf 
Club; Lower Farm; and to the Great Pond. 

Applicant:   
Agent: Mr Wai-kit Cheung 
Parish/Ward: Sunninghill And Ascot Parish/Ascot & Sunninghill 
  

If you have a question about this report, please contact:  Susan Sharman on 01628 
685320 or at susan.sharman@rbwm.gov.uk 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This application was deferred at the February Panel to allow the applicant to undertake 

great crested newt (GCN) surveys of Brewers Pond, (located within the application 
site).  The report, detailing the results of those surveys, confirms that Brewers Pond 
supports a medium breeding population of GCN and that the proposal will likely lead 
to a temporary loss of GCN terrestrial habitat and cause disturbance to GCN.  As such, 
the proposed works will need to be undertaken under licence to Natural England and 
the Council’s ecologist has advised this be secured by condition. 

 
1.2 In addition, the Council’s ecologist has recommended a Construction Environmental 

Management Plan (CEMP) and biodiversity enhancements conditions to be attached 
to any permission granted.  Subject to these conditions, there are no objections to 
this application on ecological grounds. 

 
1.3 The proposal is for development that is not inappropriate in the Green Belt.  No 

objections are raised to the proposal in respect of trees or archaeology subject to 
conditions. 

 

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in 
Section 13 of this report. 
 

 
2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION 
 

 The Council’s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to determine 

the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the Panel. 

 

 

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS 
 

9

Agenda Item 4



3.1 The application site is approximately 1.29 hectares and encompasses land within 
Ascot Racecourse, Winkfield Road, Royal Ascot Golf Club, Lower Farm public footpath 
SUNH/4/2 and the wooded area by the Great Pond.  The site includes the area of the 
new water pipeline as well as the construction access route from a construction 
compound located south of the Royal Ascot Golf Club to the east-west main pipeline 
alignment. 

 
 
 
 
4. KEY CONSTRAINTS   
 
4.1 The application site is within the Green Belt.  The areas around Brewer’s Pond, (which 

is within 250m of the proposed pipeline) and the Great Pond are also designated 
Wildlife Heritage Sites. 

 
5. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
5.1 The proposal is for the installation of a replacement underground water pipeline, 

replacement plant to pump house and associated works.  The replacement pipeline is 
approximately 1.26km long and will connect from Ascot Racecourse Reservoir, across 
Winkfield Road (the A330), Royal Ascot Golf Club, Lower Farm and to the Great Pond 
at Ascot. 

 
5.2 The purpose of the new 125mm diameter pipeline, (which will be installed by a 

combination of horizontal directional drilling and open trenching and take 
approximately 9 weeks to install), is to replace an existing and aged pipeline that 
follows a similar route.  The existing pipeline carries water abstracted from the Great 
Pond, (via the existing pump house utilising the Racecourse’s existing abstraction 
rights), to the reservoir within the Racecourse, where it is stored and used for irrigation 
needs.  However, as the existing pipeline is aged and leaking, particularly the section 
along the golf course, there is a need to decommission the existing pipeline, (which 
will be disconnected and remain in-situ) and replace this with the laying of the new 
pipeline.  This will provide a more efficient and effective channelling of water from the 
Great Pond to the Racecourse and minimise unnecessary water wastage. 

 
5.3 The proposed pipeline would be installed using two methods. Horizontal Directional 

Drilling (HDD) from the Ascot Racecourse Reservoir, beneath the A330 to the western 
edge of Royal Ascot Gold Club and for a distance of approximately 95m.  The minimum 
depth of the HDD is approximately 1.2m and the maximum is circa 2.8m.  This method 
of installation is a minimal impact trenchless method of installing underground pipes.  
Due to the high cost of HDD, only a short section of the new pipeline will be installed 
using this method to address the need to avoid underground utilities beneath the A330, 
as well as minimising impact to this highway. 

 
5.4 The majority of the new pipeline, (at a length of approximately 1,165km), will be 

installed using ground excavation, open trenching, pipe-laying and associated 
reinstatement methods.  This is the traditional ‘cut and cover’ pipeline installation 
method, whereby a trench is dug by a 14-tonne excavator, pipeline laid and then the 
trench back-filled and top-soil added.  For this proposal, the width of the trench is to 
be up to 0.45m wide and with a typical trenching depth of approximately 1.2m.  The 
proposal requires a working area either side of the trench at 3.5m, so that the total 
width of the pipeline installation working area will be up to 7.45m 

 

10



5.5 Plant within the pump house, (located in a small timber structure in close proximity to 
the Great Pond) is to be replaced as part of the proposed development to enable water 
extraction.  The replacement plant will be similar to the existing and will be contained 
within the existing pump house. 

 
5.6 There is no planning history relevant to the consideration of the proposal. 
 
6. DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
 Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003) 
 
6.1 The main Development Plan policies applying to the site are: 
  

Issue Adopted Local Plan Policy 

Green Belt GB1, GB2 (A) 

Local character N1 

Trees N6, DG1 

Recreation R8 

 
These policies can be found at https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-
policy/adopted-local-plan 

 
 Adopted Ascot Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan (2011-2026) 
 

Issue Neighbourhood Plan Policy 

Environmental (inc Trees and Biodiversity) EN2, EN4 

 
 These policies can be found at https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-
policy 
 
7. MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS  
 
 National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2019) 
 
 Section 4- Decision–making  

Section 8- Promoting healthy and safe communities 
Section 13- Protecting Green Belt land  

 Section 15- Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
 

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version  
 

Issue Local Plan Policy 

Rural Development SP5 

Nature Conservation & Biodiversity NR3 

Trees NR2 

 
Borough Local Plan: Submission Version Proposed Changes (2019) 

  

Issue Local Plan Policy 

Rural Development QP5 

Nature Conservation & Biodiversity NR2 

Trees NR3 

 

11

https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/adopted-local-plan
https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/adopted-local-plan
https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy
https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy


7.1 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant 
policies in emerging plans according to: 

 
“a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its 
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);  
b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the 
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be 
given); and  
c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this 
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).” 

 
7.2 The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was published in June 2017. Public 

consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. The plan and its supporting 
documents, including all representations received, was submitted to the Secretary of 
State for independent examination in January 2018. In December 2018, the 
examination process was paused to enable the Council to undertake additional work 
to address soundness issues raised by the Inspector. Following completion of that 
work, in October 2019 the Council approved a series of Proposed Changes to the 
BLPSV. Public consultation ran from 1 November to 15 December 2019. All 
representations received were reviewed by the Council before the Proposed Changes 
were submitted to the Inspector. The Examination was resumed in late 2020 and the 
Inspector’s post hearings advice letter was received in March 2021. The next stage 
will be for main modifications to be carried out and consulted upon. 

 
7.3 The BLPSV together with the Proposed Changes are material considerations for 

decision-making. The weight to be given to each of the emerging policies and 
allocations will depend on an assessment against the criteria set out in paragraph 48 
of the NPPF. 

 
 These documents can be found at: 
 https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/emerging-plans-and-policies 
 

Other Local Strategies or Publications 
 
7.4 Other Strategies or publications material to the proposal are: 
 

  RBWM Landscape Assessment  
 
 More information on these documents can be found at:  
 https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/planning-guidance 
 
8. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT 
 
 Comments from interested parties 
 
 6 occupiers were notified directly of the application. 
 
 The planning officer posted notices advertising the application at the site on 6th 

November 2020 and the application was advertised in the Local Press on 29th 
October 2020. 

  
 No letters of representation have been received. 
 
 Consultee responses, summarised: 

12

https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/emerging-plans-and-policies
https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/planning-guidance


 

Consultee Comment 

Where in the 

report this is 

considered 

Parish 

Council 

No objections.   Replacement pipe is needed.  The 

Arboricultural Development Report is robust.  There is a loss 

of 2 trees but the stumps will be retained for diversity to 

wooded pond-edge. 

9.4 

Tree Officer  No objections subject to conditions in regard to tree 

protection and tree retention/replacement in accordance with 

submitted arboricultural report. 

9.4 – 9.5 

Berkshire 

Archaeology 

No objections subject to a condition to undertake the works 

in accordance with the approved mitigation scheme. 

9.9– 9.11 

Lead Local 

Flood 

Authority 

No objections. Noted. 

Environment 

Agency 

No comments. Noted. 

Highway 

Authority 

No objections.  The proposal raises no highway concerns. Noted. 

Ecology No objections subject to conditions in respect of Natural 
England Licence, Construction Environmental Management 
Plan and biodiversity enhancements. 

9.6 – 9.8 

 
9. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION 
 
9.1 The key issues for consideration are: 
 

i Green Belt  
 
ii  Trees 
 
iii  Ecology, and 
 
iv Other material considerations 

 
 Green Belt 
  
9.2 Paragraph 146 of the NPPF states that certain forms of development, (in addition to 

certain new buildings referred to in paragraph 145 of the NPPF), are not inappropriate 
in the Green Belt, provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict with the 
purposes of including land within it.  These include engineering operations. 

 
9.3 The laying of the proposed new pipeline, as set out in Section 5 above, is an 

engineering operation, which when installed will have no impact on the openness of 
the Green Belt, nor conflict with the purposes of including the land within it.  
Accordingly, the proposal is not inappropriate development in the Green Belt and the 
principle of development is acceptable. 

 
 Trees 
 

13



9.4 The Council’s Tree Officer has advised that the alignment of the proposed pipeline 
has been adjusted to avoid the Root Protection Areas (RPA) of trees as far as 
possible.  Where the route encroaches within the RPA of retained trees, the potential 
adverse impacts have been minimised through the installation methodology.  Only one 
tree, an Alder, is to be removed, a further laurel, considered a scrub, is also to be lost. 

 
9.5 The Tree Officer has advised that there are no objections to the proposal subject to 

adherence to the submitted ‘tree:fabrik Arboricultural Development Report, ‘Ascot 
Racecourse Water Pipeline Project’ dated October 2020, in full, together with 
conditions relating to tree protection and retention/replacement of retained trees. 

 
 Ecology 
 
9.6 The proposed pipeline route would fall within 250m of Brewer’s Pond.  Further to the 

Council’s ecologist advice, the applicant has submitted a report detailing the results of 
great crested newt (GCN) population surveys of Brewer’s Pond (Applied Ecology, May 
2021).  The surveys confirm that Brewer’s Pond supports a medium breeding 
population of GCN and that, as there will likely therefore be temporary loss of GCN 
terrestrial habitat and possible disturbance of GCN as a result of the proposals, works 
would need to be undertaken under licence to Natural England.  The Council’s 
ecologist has advised that this should be secured via a planning condition. 

 
9.7 In addition the Council’s ecologist has advised that, in order to ensure that adjacent 

habitats and the protected and priority species and other wildlife therein (including 
reptiles and nesting birds) are not harmed by the development, a condition should be 
included in any permission granted to ensure works follow an approved Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for biodiversity.  In accordance with 
paragraph 175 of the NPPF, which states that “opportunities to incorporate biodiversity 
in and around developments should be encouraged” it is recommended a condition be 
included to ensure that enhancements for wildlife are provided with the new 
development.  

 
9.8 Subject to the conditions outlined above, the Council’s ecologist has advised that there 

are no objections to this application on ecological grounds. 
 
 Other Material Considerations 
 
9.9 Archaeology 

The development proposals were submitted alongside an archaeological desk-based 
assessment, which found that there are potential archaeological implications 
associated with the proposed scheme. 

 
 
 
 
9.10 The assessment found that there is potential for the proposals to impact deposits 

related to the construction and maintenance of a medieval dam, and that the site also 
has moderate potential to contain additional medieval and post-medieval 
archaeological features.  Therefore, the application site falls within an area of 
archaeological significance and archaeological remains may be damaged by ground 
disturbance for the proposed development.  

 
9.11 The applicant has submitted a scheme of archaeological mitigation in the form of an 

archaeological watching brief which the Council’s Archaeologist has advised is 
satisfactory.  Accordingly, should permission be granted a condition should be 

14



imposed that the works are undertaken in accordance with the submitted watching 
brief.  

 
10. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) 
 
10.1 The development is not CIL liable.  
 
11. CONCLUSION 
 
11.1 The proposal is for development that is not inappropriate in the Green Belt and would 

not adversely affect any trees or have any adverse archaeological impacts subject to 
conditions.  The applicant has sufficiently addressed previous concerns with regard to 
the impact of the proposal on Great Crested Newts and, subject to conditions set out 
below, there are no longer any ecological objections to the application. 

 
 
12. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 
  

 Appendix A - Site layout and location plan 

 
13.  CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED  
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the 

date of this permission.  
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended).  

2 The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the details and 
methodology set out in the submitted 'tree-fabrik Arboricultural Development Report' 
dated October 2020.  
Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and 
surrounding area.  Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6. 

3 The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree and any other protection 
specified shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and particulars 
before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site, and thereafter 
maintained until the completion of all construction work and all equipment, machinery 
and surplus materials have been permanently removed from the site.  Nothing shall be 
stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground 
levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, 
without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and 
surrounding area.  Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6. 

4 No tree or hedgerow shown to be retained in the approved plans shall be cut down, 
uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be lopped or topped other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and particulars or until five years from the date of 
completion of the development.  Any topping or lopping approved shall be carried out 
in accordance with British Standard 3998 Tree work.  If any retained tree is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted in the immediate vicinity 
and that tree shall be of the same size and species unless the Local Planning Authority 
give its prior written consent to any variation.    
Reason:   In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.  Relevant Policies - Local 
Plan DG1, N6.  

5 Works within 500 metres of Brewer's Pond shall not commence until a licence for 
development works affecting Great Crested Newts (GCN) has been obtained from the 
Statutory Nature Conservation Organisation, (Natural England), and a copy of the 

15



licence (or of the confirmation that the site has been registered under class licence) 
has been submitted to the local planning authority.  Thereafter mitigation measures 
approved in the licence shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details.  
Should the applicant conclude that a licence for development works affecting GCN is 
not required for all or part of the works, the applicant is to submit a report to the local 
planning authority (LPA) detailing the reasons for this assessment and this report is to 
be approved in writing by the LPA prior to commencement of works. 
Reason: To ensure that Great Crested Newts, a protected species and material 
consideration, are not adversely affected by the development. Relevant Policy: 
Paragraphs 170 and 175 of the NPPF 2019. 

6 No development shall take place (including ground works, vegetation clearance, etc.) 
until a construction environmental management plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP 
(Biodiversity) shall include the following: 

 a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities; 
 b) Identification of 'biodiversity protection zones'; 

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to 
avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method 
statements); 

 d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features; 
e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site 
to oversee works; 

 f) Responsible persons and lines of communication; 
g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or 
similarly competent person; 

 h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs; 
The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction 
period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority 
Reason: To minimise impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Paragraphs 170 and 
175 of the NPPF. 

7 Prior to completion of the development, bird and bat boxes and reptile/amphibian 
refugia and hibernacula are to be installed on or around the site under the supervision 
of a suitably qualified ecologist.  A brief letter report confirming that the boxes, refugia, 
and hibernacula have been installed, including a simple plan showing their location 
and photographs of the boxes, refugia, and hibernacula in situ, is to be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Council. 
Reason: To incorporate biodiversity improvements in and around developments in 
accordance with paragraph 170 of the NPPF. 

8 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Written Scheme 
of Investigation, dated November 2020. 
Reason: The site lies in an area of archaeological potential and the potential impacts 
of the development can be mitigated through a programme of archaeological works, in 
accordance with paragraphs 189 and 190 of the NPPF. 

9 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans listed below. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved particulars and plans. 

 

16



Appendix A 

Site location and layout 

 

Extent of proposed pipeline 

Racecourse Golf Course 

17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL 
 
4 August 2021          Item:  2 

Application 
No.: 

21/01587/FULL 

Location: 43 Kentons Lane Windsor SL4 4JH  
Proposal: Single storey outbuilding  (retrospective). 
Applicant: Andrea Reis 
Agent: Mr Jose Antunes 
Parish/Ward: Windsor Unparished/Clewer And Dedworth East 
  

If you have a question about this report, please contact:  Carlos Chikwamba on 
01628796745 or at carlos.chikwamba@rbwm.gov.uk 

 
  
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The outbuilding is not considered to have a detrimental impact on the character and 

appearance of the site and wider area.  
 

1.2 The outbuilding is also not deemed to cause significant harm to the immediate 
neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy, outlook, daylight, sunlight or 
otherwise. 

 

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in 
Section 9 of this report. 

  
2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION 
 

 At the request of Councillor Helen Price due to the following reasons; 

 

‘At the request of neighbours. It has been built too near the fence which constitutes a fire and 
therefore safety hazard. It is considerably higher than neighbours' fences, is intimidating and 
thus compromises privacy’ 

 
3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS 
 
3.1 The site is a reasonably sized plot currently occupied by a 2 storey semi-detached 

dwelling and an outbuilding to its rear, which the current application relates to. The site 
is located along Kentons Lane within Clewer Green, a residential area, to the south-
west of Windsor town centre. The properties within the immediate vicinity are 
characterised by other 2 storey dwellings occupied within similar sized plots.  

 
3.2 There are no planning constraints affecting the site.   
 
4. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
4.1 This is a retrospective application seeking permission for a single storey outbuilding. 

The outbuilding has a mono-pitched roof design. Its maximum height when measured 
from the ground level (including the raised platform) amounts to 2.85 metres, and the 
outbuilding’s height along the rear bottom slope of its roof is 2.41 metres. 

 
4.2 There is no planning history of relevance to this scheme.   

19

Agenda Item 5



 
5. MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION 
 

Royal Borough Local Plan 
 
5.1 The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated 
policies are: 
 

Issue 
Local Plan 

Policy 
Compliance 

Design in keeping with character of area DG1 Yes  

 
 These policies can be found at: 
 https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/adopted-local-plan 
  

Adopted Windsor Neighbourhood Plan 
 

Windsor Neighbourhood Plan  Policy DES.01 Yes  

 
5.2 Borough Local Plan: Submission Version and Proposed Changes 
 

Issue Proposed Changes Policy 

Design in keeping with character and appearance of area QP1, QP3 

Acceptable impact on neighbouring amenity QP3 

 
5.3 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant 

policies in emerging plans according to: 
 

“a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its 
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);  
b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the 
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be 
given); and  
c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this 
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).” 

 
5.4 The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was published in June 2017. Public 

consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. The plan and its supporting 
documents, including all representations received, was submitted to the Secretary of 
State for independent examination in January 2018. In December 2018, the 
examination process was paused to enable the Council to undertake additional work 
to address soundness issues raised by the Inspector.  Following completion of that 
work, in October 2019 the Council approved a series of Proposed Changes to the 
BLPSV. Public consultation ran from 1 November to 15 December 2019. All 
representations received were reviewed by the Council before the Proposed Changes 
were submitted to the Inspector. The Examination was resumed in late 2020 and the 
Inspector’s post hearings advice letter was received in March, 2021.  The next stage 
will be for main modifications to be carried out and consulted upon.   
 

20

https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/adopted-local-plan


5.5 The BLPSV together with the Proposed Changes are material considerations for 
decision-making.  The weight to be given to each of the emerging policies and 
allocations will depend on an assessment against the criteria set out in paragraph 48 
of the NPPF. This assessment is set out in detail, where relevant, in Section 7 of this 
report. 

 
These documents can be found at: 
https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/emerging-plans-and-policies 

 
5.6 Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal 

are: 
 

• Borough Wide Design Guide (2020) 
  

More information on this document can be found at: 
https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/planning-guidance 

6. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT 
 
 Comments from interested parties 
  
  4 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as: 
 
  

Comment Officer Response 

 
-Made of combustible material (wood), fire risk 
-Main drainage already installed. 
-Mains electrical cable seems to be attached to 41 
Kentons Lane fence. 
-Shower and toilet already installed. 

-Inaccurate plans  

- Potential to be used as a self-contained dwelling 

- Loss of privacy, noise and light pollution 

-Building large and visually unattractive in terms of its 
design, proximity to boundary and loss in footprint  

-Drainage and flooding  

 
 
 
 
 

 
-It is very common for 
outbuildings to made of 
wood. Several 
neighbouring 
outbuildings are made of 
the same materials. 
Additionally, the 
suitability of proposed 
materials in relation to 
fire hazards is a building 
control matter. 
-Points 2 - 4 are not 
material planning 
considerations 
-Amended plans have 
been submitted, which 
accurately reflect the 
existing situation on site. 
-The outbuilding will 
remain ancillary to the 
main dwelling  
-Points 7 & 8 addressed 
in Section 7 of the report. 
-The development is not 
located within an area 
liable of flooding 

 
7. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION 

21

https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/emerging-plans-and-policies
https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/planning-policy/planning-guidance


 
7.1 The key issues for consideration are: 
 

i Character and Appearance  
 
ii Impact on neighbouring amenities 
 
iii Other material considerations  

 
Character and Appearance  

 
7.2 The appearance of a development is a material planning consideration and the 

National Planning Policy Framework, Section 12 (Achieving Well-Designed Places) 
and Local Plan Policy DG1, advises that all development should seek to achieve a 
high quality of design that improves the character and quality of an area. Policy DES.01 
of the Windsor NP is consistent with Local and National Policy and provides guidance 
on good design.  

 
7.3 The outbuilding is located to the rear of the site.  The building is built on a raised 

platform due to the uneven ground levels on site. The outbuilding has a mono-pitched 
roof design, its maximum height when measured from the ground level including the 
raised platform amounts to 2.85 metres and the outbuilding’s height along the rear 
bottom slope of its roof is 2.41 metres. Therefore, despite the outbuilding covering 
almost the entire width of the site, its height is considered to be modest, therefore, 
minimising its visual prominence. The proposed timber materials for the development 
are not deemed to deter away from the character and appearance of the wider area 
as several outbuildings within the neighbouring plots have similiar materials. The 
outbuilding, including the raised platform and steps add a footprint of about 34sqm to 
the site. The outbuilding is also set away from the rear end wall of the main dwelling 
by at least 10 metres, therefore, enough open amenity space will be retained on site.  

 
7.4 Overall, the proposed outbuilding is not considered to have a negative impact on the 

character and appearance of the site and wider area. Therefore, it is deemed 
acceptable from a design standpoint.  

 
Impact on neighbouring amenities 

 
7.5 Paragraph 127 (f) of the NPPF (2019) sets out that planning decisions should ensure 

that developments should provide a high standard of amenity for existing and future 
users. The outbuilding is set to the rear of the site, directly adjacent to the rear 
boundary treatment. It is also within close proximity to both adjacent side boundary 
lines. Due to its location the outbuilding is sufficiently set away from the properties at 
both the immediate neighbouring plots at Nos 41 and 45 Kentons Lane. The 
outbuilding does not extend beyond the front wall of the adjacent rear shed at No.45 
and it is also sufficiently set away from the shed at No.41. Overall, based on the above 
and considering the outbuilding’s height as addressed in Section 7.2, the outbuilding 
is not deemed to cause any loss of light/outlook issues and 
overbearing/overshadowing impacts to the immediate neighbouring properties that 
bound the development site. 

 
7.6 There were several objections in relation to a loss of privacy resulting from the raised 

platform associated with the outbuilding. The subject platform does not exceed 0.3 
metres in height. Therefore, due to its very modest height the views into the rear 
gardens of the neighbouring properties at Nos 41 and 43 from the raised platform are 
not considered to be significantly different to the views into the properties from the 

22



existing ground level, especially considering that the ground slopes upwards towards 
to rear end of the development site. Further to the above, as the platform will not 
exceed 0.3 metres in height this could be constructed without planning permission 
under permitted development. This is a material consideration to the consideration of 
this application.  

 
7.7 The outbuilding is not considered to cause an acceptable level of noise or disturbance 

considering that its use will remain ancillary to the host dwelling.  
 

7.8 Overall, it is considered that there would be no significant harm caused to the 
immediate neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy, outlook, daylight, 
sunlight or otherwise. 

 
Other material considerations 

 
7.9 The outbuilding does not propose additional bedrooms to the site, therefore, the site’s 

parking considerations will not be affected. 
 
 Conclusion 
 
7.10 For the reasons set out in this report, the outbuilding is considered to comply with 

relevant planning policies and guidance.  It is therefore recommended that planning 
permission is granted. 

 
8. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 
  

 Appendix A – Site location plan 

 Appendix B – Proposed elevations  

 Appendix C – Proposed floor plan 

 
Documents associated with the application can be viewed at 
https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/find-planning-application  by entering the 
application number shown at the top of this report without the suffix letters. 

 
9. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED  

 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed below. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved particulars and plans. 

 

23

https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/planning/find-planning-application


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendices. 

 

  Appendix A – Site Location Plan. 

 

 

Appendix B – Existing and proposed plan. 

Existing  

 

 

25



 

 

Proposed  

 

 

 

Appendix C – Existing and proposed elevations. 

 

Existing  

 

Proposed 

26



 

 

 

  

27



This page is intentionally left blank



   

Appeal Decision Report 
 

28 June 2021 - 23 July 2021 
 

Windsor and Ascot 
 
 
 
 

Appeal Ref.: 20/60104/COND Planning Ref.: 16/02366/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/20/
3248271 

Appellant: Mr Tim Fowles c/o Agent: Mr Michael Krantz Gunnercooke LLP 1 Cornhill London EC3V 3ND 

Decision Type: Committee Officer Recommendation: Application 
Permitted 

Description: Detached building for the maintenance of plant and machinery associated with the storage 
before and after processing and processing of waste materials which is the subject of a 
Certificate of Lawful Use dated 9 September 1998 (retrospective)   

Location: Fowles Crushed Concrete Hythe End Farm Hythe End Road Wraysbury Staines TW19 
5AW  

Appeal Decision: Allowed Decision Date: 2 July 2021 

 
Main Issue: 

 
The Inspector concluded that a condition is only necessary and reasonable to clarify inclusion 
of vehicle maintenance in the building's use and that its use should be in conjunction with the 
lawful use of the site as a waste processing facility or any other lawful use of the site. 
Accordingly a revised condition was imposed to confirm these matters.  The Appellant 
submitted a costs application against the LPA this was refused by the Inspector. 
 

 
 

Appeal Ref.: 21/60025/REF Planning Ref.: 20/00935/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/20/3
265984 

Appellant: Sorbon Estates Ltd c/o Agent: Mr Kevin Scott Solve Planning Ltd Sentinel House Ancells 
Business Park Harvest Crescent Fleet GU51 2UZ 

Decision Type: Committee Officer Recommendation: Application Permitted 

Description: Construction of x10 flats with associated landscaping, parking and bin store and alterations to 
the existing access, following demolition of the existing building. 

Location: Essex Lodge 69 Osborne Road And Annexe Essex Lodge 69 Osborne Road Windsor   

Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 28 June 2021 

 
Main Issue: 

 
Costs Decision:  The application for an award of costs is refused.  The Inspector is satisfied 
that the Council has substantiated the reason for refusal and provided objective analysis of the 
proposal's impact and is satisfied that the Council acted reasonably in refusing the application 
and that the applicant has not incurred unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process.  
Appeal Decision:  Essex Lodge makes a positive contribution to the setting of the Conservation 
Area and is a non-designated heritage asset as confirmed in the Windsor Neighbourhood Plan.   
In view of the recently made status of the WNP the Inspector has given additional weight to the 
historic appearance and function role of Essex Lodge as a gateway building, its contribution to 
the wider area, the streetscene, the adjacent CA and its identification as a NDHA. In the context 
of the two-storey development on the northern side of the roundabout including King's House 
the proposed building would appear significantly larger, bulkier and less spaciously laid out and 
would erode the open character of the area.  The harm to the significance of the CA due to the 
adverse affect on its setting carries great weight and is not outweighed by the public benefits 
which arise from the proposal. The proposal involves the complete demolition of the existing 
building and so the scale of the harm to the asset would therefore be substantial and attracts 
great weight in the planning balance. The loss of the NDHA is not justified and the Inspector 
concludes that the proposed development would harm the character and appearance of the 
area, including the setting of the Inner Windsor Conservation Area and is contrary to Local Plan 
policies DG1, H10 and CA2.   
 

 

29

Agenda Item 6



   

Appeal Ref.: 21/60027/ENF Enforcement 
Ref.: 

19/50267/ENF PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/C/21/3
270786 

Appellant: Ms Linda Zita Webb c/o Agent: Mr Kevin John Turner Kevin J Turner FRICS 64 Wood Road 
Shepperton Middlesex TW17 0DX 

Decision Type:  Officer Recommendation:  

Description: Appeal against the Enforcement Notice:  Without planning permission, erection of a single storey 
rear extension. 

Location: 18 Coppermill Road Wraysbury Staines TW19 5NT  

Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 12 July 2021 

 
Main Issue: 

 
Ground A  The Inspector found that the increase in floorspace when taken in conjunction with 
previous extensions resulted in a disproportionate addition and as such it represented 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt.  With regard to openness, the Inspector 
considered there is a only a very limited impact on the visual aspect of openness. Even so, as 
the extension has a physical presence, it reduces the spatial aspect of openness contrary to the 
fundamental aim of the Green Belt.  Ground G  The compliance period was increased from 3 
months to 6 months as the Inspector considered, in balancing the importance of Green Belt 
policy against the appellant's private interests, and bearing in mind that there is no harm caused 
to neighbours' living conditions or the appearance of the area, the Inspector considered that 
extending the compliance period to 6 months would be reasonable. 
 

 

Appeal Ref.: 21/60028/REF Planning Ref.: 20/02434/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/20/
3265991 

Appellant: Mr S Sahota c/o Agent: Mr Paul Dickinson Paul Dickinson And Associates Highway House  
Lower Froyle Hants GU34 4NB 

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse 

Description: Construction of a two storey building with accommodation in the roof to provide x7 apartments 
and bin and bicycle storage with altered access, parking and landscaping, following demolition 
of the existing dwellinghouse. 

Location: Wilbury Cottage  Beech Hill Road Ascot SL5 0BN 

Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 9 July 2021 

 
Main Issue: 

 
The proposal would introduce a much larger building  compared with what is existing.  It  would 
be more noticeable and conspicuous in the street scene and discordant with prevailing 
patterns of development comprising mostly smaller semi-detached and terraced houses with 
strong building lines, reflective of Victorian Village typology along Beech Road.  The large 
building would breach the tree RPA.  Although the breach may not be significant , in the 
absence of a soil assessment, and foundation design for cross-over and other hardstanding 
there is doubt about the overall effects of the proposal.  Furthermore, it is not clear whether 
the submitted root radar survey is comprehensive. It cannot be reliably concluded that the root 
protection system is of sufficient extent to mitigate the encroachment of the proposal.   
Consequently,  altogether, it could not be confidently concluded that the proposal would not 
give rise to development pressures on the trees that would result in poor long term health and 
deterioration. The adverse impacts identified,  significantly and demonstrably outweigh any 
benefits of providing additional housing in this case, and the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development would not apply. 
 

 

30



   

Appeal Ref.: 21/60029/REF Planning Ref.: 20/00780/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/20/
3265865 

Appellant: Mr Dudley Mills c/o Agent: Mr Paul Dickinson Paul Dickinson And Associates Highway House  
Lower Froyle Hants GU34 4NB 

Decision Type: Committee Officer Recommendation: Refuse 

Description: Erection of 10 no. apartments with basement parking following demolition of existing building 

Location: Hill House  Cross Road Sunningdale Ascot SL5 9RX 

Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 9 July 2021 

 
Main Issue: 

 
The Inspector considered that the rear proportions of the proposal would still be substantial 
and far in excess of the most recent building permitted at the site and would present itself as 
an incongruous addition to the street scene when viewed from the eastern vantage points in 
Cross Road. Unlike the recent planning permission the rear portion would not appear 
subservient with the main built form. The extant planning permission would be more in keeping 
with the scale of the other buildings and the appeal proposal is too large in comparison to the 
prevailing development. The Inspector considered that the proposal would deliver a building 
of uncharacteristic bulk which would have a harmful effect on the character and appearance 
of the area, contrary to Local Plan Policies H10, H11 and DG1 and Neighbourhood Plan 
policies DG1, DG2 and DG3.  The Inspector did not accept that the proposal would adversely 
affect the trees on the site. 
 

 
 

Appeal Ref.: 21/60039/REF Planning Ref.: 20/02944/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/21/
3270394 

Appellant: Ms  Andromahe Michael c/o Agent: Ms Julie Greer GreerPritchard 32 Gilkes Crescent 
Dulwich London SE21 9BG 

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse 

Description: Two storey side and single storey rear extension, relocation of front door, alteration to 
fenestration, side path to be refinished in gravel and pavers following demolition of existing 
elements. 

Location: 57 Halfpenny Lane Sunningdale Ascot SL5 0EG 

Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 14 July 2021 

 
Main Issue: 

 
The Inspector concluded that  the proposed development would harm the character and 
appearance of the area. It would be contrary to policies NP/DG1, NP/DG2 and NP/DG3 of the 
Neighbourhood Plan, and saved policies DG1 and H14 of Royal Borough of Windsor and 
Maidenhead Local Plan, which collectively require all new development should demonstrate 
good quality design, and with regards a proposal in Townscape Assessment Zone Victorian 
Village, it must respect the form and character of the street and the surrounding area. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf

	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 20/02720/FULL - Reservoir Ascot Racecourse Winkfield Road Ascot To Pumping Station West of The Great Pond Watersplash Lane - Ascot
	20-02720 Appendix

	5 21/01587/FULL - 43 Kentons Lane - Windsor - SL4 4JH
	Appendices. -  21-01587

	6 Planning Appeals Received and Planning Decision Report

